
 

 

 
Portfolio Holder Decisions/Leader 

Decisions 

 
Date:  Friday 28 April 2023 
Time:  12.00 pm 
 
Membership 
 
Councillor Wallace Redford 
 
Items on the agenda: -  
  
1.   Warwick District CPE Variation No. 12 

 
3 - 70 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Monica Fogarty 
Chief Executive 

Warwickshire County Council 
Shire Hall, Warwick 

 
 



 

Portfolio Holder 
Decisions/Leader Decisions 
Friday 28 April 2023 

Page 2 
  

 

 
 

Disclaimers 
 
Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 
 
Members are required to register their disclosable pecuniary interests within 28 days of their 
election of appointment to the Council.  Any changes to matters registered or new matters that 
require to be registered must be notified to the Monitoring Officer as soon as practicable after they 
arise. 
 
A member attending a meeting where a matter arises in which they have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest must (unless they have a dispensation):  
 

• Declare the interest if they have not already registered it  
• Not participate in any discussion or vote  
• Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with  
• Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 

the meeting  
 
Non-pecuniary interests relevant to the agenda should be declared at the commencement of the 
meeting. 
 
The public reports referred to are available on the Warwickshire Web 
https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1  
 
Public Speaking 
 
Any member of the public who is resident or working in Warwickshire, or who is in receipt of 
services from the Council, may speak at the meeting for up to three minutes on any matter within 
the remit of the Committee. This can be in the form of a statement or a question. If you wish to 
speak, please notify Democratic Services in writing at least two working days before the meeting. 
You should give your name and address and the subject upon which you wish to speak. Full details 
of the public speaking scheme are set out in the Council’s Standing Orders.  
 
COVID-19 Pandemic 
 
Any member or officer of the Council or any person attending this meeting must inform Democratic 
Services if within a week of the meeting they discover they have COVID-19 or have been in close 
proximity to anyone found to have COVID-19. 
 
 

https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

Portfolio Holder Decision  
Warwick District CPE Variation No. 12 

 
Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for Transport and 

Planning 
Date of decision 28 April 2023 

 
Signed 
 
 

 
1. Decision taken 

 
That the portfolio holder for Transport and Planning approves that the below named 
proposed Traffic Regulation Order be implemented as advertised: 
 
The Warwickshire County Council (District of Warwick) (Civil Enforcement Area) (Waiting 
Restrictions, On-Street Parking Places and Residents’ Parking) (Consolidation) (Variation 
12) Order 2022. 
 
 
2. Reasons for decisions 

 
1. Clapham Terrace & Rushmore Street, Leamington Spa – No Waiting at any 

Time 

1.1. Following on from complaints of difficulties with access to Rushmore Street from 
Clapham Terrace, it has been proposed to introduce 10 metres of double yellow 
lines at the junction of Clapham Terrace and Rushmore Street.  

1.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with 
the officer recommendations. 

Emails/letters 
Total objections 4 
Total comments 5 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 
Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A Will reduce the parking capacity on Clapham Terrace and 
Rushmore Street 1 

B Cars parking at the junction are not an issue 1 

C The restrictions will reduce the capacity of the road available for 
the residents to park 2 

Page 3

Page 1 of 8 Agenda Item 1



 

 

D Will only push the problem somewhere else 1 
E Support the Proposals 1 

 
Ref Officer Comments 

A/C 

It is acknowledged that the introduction of No Waiting at any Time restrictions would 
reduce the capacity of the road, however these restrictions have been proposed to 
improve the safety of the junction by reinforcing the Highway Code which states “You 
MUST NOT leave your vehicle or trailer in a dangerous position or where it causes any 
unnecessary obstruction of the road. [Laws CSDPA sect 21 & RTRA sects 5 & 8]” 

B 
Cars parking at the junction may not be as obstructive to cars and smaller vehicles, 
larger less manoeuvrable vehicles will have more difficulty navigating the obstructions 
caused by parking at the junction. 

D 
It is acknowledged that these proposals will move the parking elsewhere in the area, 
however the purpose of the proposals is to move the vehicles to a location that is less 
obstructive. 

E No comment necessary 
 

Recommendations 
It is recommended to implement these proposals as advertised. 

 
Members Comments 
No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received they will 
be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
2. Clarendon Road and Glebe Crescent, Kenilworth – No Waiting at any Time 

2.1. Following on from complaints of parking at the junction of Clarendon Road and 
Glebe Crescent, it has been proposed to introduce 10 metres of double yellow 
lines at the junction of Clarendon Road and Glebe Crescent.  

2.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with 
the officer recommendations. 

Emails/letters 
Total objections 3 
Total comments 3 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 
Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A There has never been a problem with parking 1 
B Will push the parking elsewhere causing more of an issue 2 
C Proposals will not solve anything 1 
D Request a residents parking scheme as an alternative 2 

 
Ref Officer Comments 
A We received multiple requests to assist with obstructive parking at the junction of Glebe 

Crescent and Clarendon Road 

B 
It is acknowledged that these proposals will move the parking elsewhere in the area, 
however the purpose of the proposals is to move the vehicles to a location that is less 
obstructive. 

Page 4

Page 2 of 8



 

 

C 
These proposals will assist in preventing parking around the junction of Clarendon Road 
and Glebe Crescent where it would be considered dangerous for a vehicle to be for an 
extended period of time 

D 

A residents parking scheme would not be appropriate here as it does not meet the 
criteria set out in Warwickshire County Councils parking policies. The properties along 
Glebe Crescent and Clarendon Road have driveways which would be against point 2.2 
(iv) given below; 
 
2.2 (iv)  It should generally be demonstrated that the majority of the available kerbside 
parking space is regularly occupied by non-residential parkers and also that a 
significant number of the properties do not have parking space within the curtilage. 

 
Recommendations 
It is recommended to implement these proposals as advertised. 

 
Members Comments 
No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received they will 
be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
3. Chapel Street, Leamington Spa – Limited Waiting 2 hours No Return 4 Hours 

Except permit holders (L6) 

3.1. Following on from requests to increase the capacity of the L6 residents parking 
zone in Leamington.  

3.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with 
the officer recommendations. 

Emails/letters 
Total objections 3 
Total comments 4 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 
Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A Support these proposals 1 
B There is not a problem of a lack of parking for vehicles in the area 2 
C The disabled bays are often occupied by non-badge holders 1 
D Removing the spaces will hinder the funeral directors’ vehicles 1 

E The owners/occupiers of the houses will be more disadvantaged 
and disturbed by parked cars outside their houses 1 

F Parking would reduce the visibility of vehicles using Chapel Street 1 
G Would increase the amount of noise in the area 1 

 
Ref Officer Comments 
A No comment necessary 

B 
We have received multiple requests from residents within the L6 residents parking zone 
to assist with the amount of parking within the L6 zone and the surrounding area. This 
implies that there is a need for more parking spaces available for residents of the L6 
zone. 

C These proposals will allow for a greater turnover of parking in the area of Chapel Street 

Page 5

Page 3 of 8



 

 

whilst also increasing the capacity of the road. This will provide a greater chance that 
the disabled bays are available for drivers displaying a valid blue badge. 

D The proposals will leave sufficient room for vehicles from the funeral directors to park 
their vehicles along Chapel Street outside their property. 

E 
These proposals will provide parking facilities with priorities for residents and their 
visitors, additionally the proposals will promote short term parking along Chapel Street 
which and will provide a greater opportunity for residents and visitor to park nearby. 

F 
Whilst these proposals will reduce the visibility for crossing the road at the centre part of 
Chapel Street, it will direct pedestrians to cross in more suitable locations where 
visibility is greater. 

G 
Whilst these proposals have the potential to increase the amount of noise in the area, 
this would predominantly take place during the daytime and have a minimal impact on 
the amount of noise in the area. 

 
Recommendations 
It is recommended to implement these proposals as advertised. 

 
Members Comments 
No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received they will 
be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
4. Elmbank Road, Kenilworth – No Waiting at any Time 

4.1. Following on from complaints of parking at the junction of obstructive parking 
along Elmbank Road, it is proposed to introduce double yellow lines at various 
locations along Elmbank Road 

4.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with 
the officer recommendations. 

Emails/letters 
Total objections 3 
Total comments 3 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 
Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A This will restrict residents parking. 1 

B Recommend that a residents parking scheme is included with the 
proposals 2 

C Request that the area in front of No. 6 is unrestricted 1 

D Parking has never been an issue in the locations where the yellow 
lines are proposed 2 

E Does not address potential for accidents at the bends 1 
F Does not provide any mitigation of parking along the footpath 1 
G Request consultation into alternative proposals 1 

 
Ref Officer Comments 

A 
It is acknowledged that the introduction of No Waiting at any Time restrictions would 
reduce the capacity of the road available for residents, however these restrictions have 
been proposed to improve the safety of the junction by reinforcing the Highway Code 

Page 6

Page 4 of 8



 

 

which states “You MUST NOT leave your vehicle or trailer in a dangerous position or 
where it causes any unnecessary obstruction of the road. [Laws CSDPA sect 21 & 
RTRA sects 5 & 8]” 

B 

A residents parking scheme would not be appropriate here as it does not meet the 
criteria set out in Warwickshire County Councils parking policies. The properties along 
Glebe Crescent and Clarendon Road have driveways which would be against point 2.2 
(iv) given below; 
 
2.2 (iv)  It should generally be demonstrated that the majority of the available kerbside 
parking space is regularly occupied by non-residential parkers and also that a 
significant number of the properties do not have parking space within the curtilage. 

C 
These restrictions have been proposed in the locations that would be considered 
dangerous for vehicles to wait whilst still allowing places that are safer for residents and 
visitors vehicles to be located 

D We received multiple requests to assist with obstructive parking along Elmbank Road 

E 
The restrictions that are proposed along Elmbank Road will prevent parking along at the 
bends whilst also allowing parking along the straight sections, thereby creating a 
slowing effect whilst still keeping the corners free from obstructions 

F The no wating at any time restrictions apply from the centre of the carriageway to the 
back of the adjoining footway therefore prohibiting vehicles from parking on the footway 

G 
These proposals were designed and previously consulted upon with the residents of 
Elmbank Road which approved of idea of having double yellow lines but requested 
changes to the design which resulted in the current proposals 

 
Recommendations 
It is recommended to implement these proposals as advertised. 

 
Members Comments 
No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received they will 
be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
5. Culworth Close, Breaksmead and Bonniksen Close Leamington Spa – No Waiting 

at any Time 

5.1. Following on from complaints of inconsiderate parking along Breaksmead and 
Culworth Close it has been proposed to introduce double yellow lines along 
Breaksmead and at the junctions 

5.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with 
the officer recommendations. 

Emails/letters 
Total objections 3 
Total comments 3 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 
Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A Will not help the parking situation  1 
B Request a residents parking scheme 2 
C Does not help with the parking from nearby businesses 2 

Page 7

Page 5 of 8



 

 

D Object to the proposals 1 
E Will have a detrimental impact on the residents 1 

 
Ref Officer Comments 

A/C 
These restrictions were not proposed to eliminate all parking that has not originated 
from the residents but rather to direct the parking that is taking place to a more suitable 
location 

B 

A residents parking scheme would not be appropriate here as it does not meet the 
criteria set out in Warwickshire County Councils parking policies. The properties along 
Culworth Close have driveways which would be against point 2.2 (iv) given below; 
 
2.2 (iv)  It should generally be demonstrated that the majority of the available kerbside 
parking space is regularly occupied by non-residential parkers and also that a 
significant number of the properties do not have parking space within the curtilage. 

D No comment necessary 

E 
Whilst it is acknowledged that these proposals will affect the residents of Culworth 
Close, the overall safety of the junction and Breaksmead will be improved by preventing 
parking in areas that would be considered dangerous and obstructive 

 
Recommendations 
It is recommended to implement these proposals as advertised. 

 
Members Comments 
No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received they will 
be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
6. Woodloes Avenue South, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

6.1. Following on from complaints of obstructive parking along Woodloes Avenue 
South, it has been proposed to introduce double yellow lines at the junctions 
along Woodloes Avenue South between Primrose Hill and Kettlewell Close.  

6.2. The following tables detail the objections and/or comments received along with 
the officer recommendations. 

Emails/letters 
Total objections 0 
Total comments 1 

 

Ref Objections and comments received 
Total number of 
responses 
containing the 
comment  

A The double yellow lines should be extended round the corner 
(between Smythe Grove and Kilsney Grove)  1 

 
Ref Officer Comments 

A 
These restrictions were proposed to direct parked cars away from the junctions where it 
would be considered dangerous. Further restrictions have the potential to push 
additional vehicles into the more residential areas 

 

Page 8

Page 6 of 8



 

 

Recommendations 
It is recommended to implement these proposals as advertised. 

 
Members Comments 
No comments have yet been received from the local member, if comments are received they will 
be forwarded on to the Portfolio Holder for consideration. 

 
3. Background information 
 

3.1 Proposals for waiting restrictions at various locations were advertised and 
consulted upon in accordance with statutory procedure on the 9th June 2022, with 
consultation open until the 1st July 2022. 

3.2 The statutory criteria for decisions on making Traffic Regulation Orders are 
included as Appendix A. 

3.3 Drawings showing published proposals for waiting restrictions are found in 
Appendix B. 

3.4 A copy of the published Statement of Reasons for each scheme are found in 
Appendix C. 

3.5 Copies of objections and comments received are available as background 
information in Appendix D. 

3.6 A full copy of Warwickshire County Councils Parking Policies is available in 
Appendix E 

 
 
4. Financial implications 
 
4.1 All work will be carried out within the existing 2022/23 CPE budget allocations. 
 
 
5. Environmental implications 
 
5.1 It is anticipated that the presence of waiting restrictions would not have a significant 
adverse effect on air quality, with no predicted increase in traffic volumes or noise levels 
as a result of the schemes. 
 
 
Report Author Ben Davenport 

bendavenport@warwickshire.gov.uk,  
Assistant Director Scott Tompkins 

scotttompkins@warwickshire.gov.uk 
Strategic Director Strategic Director for Communities 
Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning 
 
Urgent matter? No 

Page 9

Page 7 of 8



 

 

Confidential or exempt? No 
Is the decision contrary to the 
budget and policy 
framework? 

No 

 
List of background papers 
 
None 
 
 
Members and officers consulted and informed 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor Wallace Redford 
 
Corporate Board – Mark Ryder 
 
Legal – Caroline Gutteridge 
 
Finance – Andrew Felton 
 
Equality – n/a 
 
Democratic Services – Isabelle Moorhouse 
 
Councillors – Clarke, Chilvers, Fradgley and D’Arcy 
 
Local Member(s): Councillors W Roberts, Millar, Spencer, Cooke 

 
 

Page 10

Page 8 of 8



 A1 of 2  
 

OFFICIAL  

Appendix A  
 

Statutory Criteria for Decisions on Making Traffic  
Regulation Orders and Parking Orders 

 

The Warwickshire County Council (District of Warwick) (Civil 
Enforecement Area) (Waiting Restrictions, On-Street Parking 

Places and Residents’ Parking) (Consolidation) (Variation 
12) Order 2022. 

 
1. The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 enables the Council to implement Traffic 

Regulation Orders (TROs) for one or more of the following purposes:- 
 

(i) avoiding danger to persons or traffic; 
(ii) preventing damage to the road or to buildings nearby; 
(iii) facilitating the passage of traffic; 
(iv) preventing use by unsuitable traffic; 
(v) preserving the character of a road especially suitable for walking and 

horse riding; 
(vi) preserving or improving amenities of the area through which the road 

runs; 
(vii) for any of the purposes specified in Section 87(1)(a) to (c) of the 

Environment Act 1995 in relation to air quality. 
 
2. TROs are designed to regulate, restrict or prohibit the use of a road or any part 

of the width of a road by vehicular traffic or pedestrians.  Permanent TROs 
remain in force until superseded or revoked.  

 
3. TROs must not have the effect of preventing pedestrian access at any time, or 

preventing vehicular access for more than 8 hours in 24, to premises on or 
adjacent to the road.  This restriction does not apply if the Council states in the 
order that it requires vehicular access to be limited for more than 8 hours in 24.  

 
4. The Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 also enables the Council to make orders 

authorising the use of part of a road as a parking place without charge, for the 
purpose of preventing or relieving congestion, and enables the Council to make 
orders designating parking places on highways with a charge.  In determining 
what parking places are to be designated, the Council shall consider both the 
interests of traffic, and those of the owners/occupiers of adjoining property and 
in particular:- 

 
(I) The need for maintaining the free movement of traffic; 
(ii) The need for maintaining reasonable access to premises; and 
(iii) The extent to which off-street parking is available in the neighbourhood.   

 
5. In deciding whether or not to make any order, the Council is required to have 

regard to the matters set out in section 122 of the 1984 Act.  Section 122(1) 
requires the Council to exercise the functions conferred on it by the 1984 Act as 

Page 11

Page 1 of 2Page 1 of 2



 A2 of 2  
 

OFFICIAL  

(so far as practicable, having regard to the matters specified in Section 122(2)) 
to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other 
traffic (including pedestrians), and the provision of suitable and adequate 
parking facilities on and off the highway.   

 
6. The matters to which the Council must have regard are:- 
 

(i) The desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to 
premises; 

(ii) The effect on the amenities of any locality affected, and the importance of 
regulating and restricting the use of roads by heavy commercial vehicles 
so as to preserve or improve the amenities of the areas through which the 
roads run; 

(iii) The national air quality strategy prepared under Section 80 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1995; 

(iv) The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles and 
of securing the safety and convenience of persons using or desiring to 
use such vehicles; 

(v) Any other matters appearing to the Council to be relevant 
 

7. Therefore, whilst the overall objective of the Council must be to secure the 
expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular traffic, this will 
sometimes need to give way to the objectives in Section 122(2), and a balance 
has to be achieved between the overall objective and the matters set out in 
Section 122(2). 

 

Page 12

Page 2 of 2



2

11

46

1

1610

12

2

1

5

15

B
R

A
K

E
S

M
E

A
D

1

3

BONNIKSEN CLOSE

CULW
ORTH CLOSE

1

0

8

14

L

O

C

K

H

E

E

D

 

C

L

O

S

E

48

3
1

1
1

45

3
2

15

11

17

1

6

17

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed
in locations shown

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

NOTES

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Breaksmead

Leamington

Proposed No Waiting at any Time

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4P

PTRO21-022-001

Warwick District CPE No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Page 13

Page 1 of 20Page 1 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


3

5

2

3

3

6

1

1

1

C

L

A

P

H

A

M

 
T

E

R

R

A

C

E

2

2

1

4

52.7m

10m

10m

10m
10m

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed
in locations shown

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

NOTES

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Clapham Terrace

Leamington

No Waiting at any Time

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4P

PTRO21-022-002

Warwick District CPE No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Page 14

Page 2 of 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUSHMORE STREET

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


3

1

2

9

1

3

4

2

8

2

6

9m

15m

15m
Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed
in locations shown

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Clarendon Road

Kenilworth

Proposed No Waiting at any Time

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4_L

PTRO21-022-003

Warwick District CPE Variation No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

P
age 15

P
age 3 of 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
CLARENDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
GLEBE CRESCENT

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


LB

2
6

TCBs

1
6

3

9

2
0

2

9

 

t

o

 

3

3

3
2

3

5

3
0

C
H

A
P

E
L

1
4

2
4

1
8

1
2

2

7

2
2

2
8

Chapel Cross

1 to 11

12
m

21
m

A loading bay is proposed to
be installed in the location shown

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

NOTES

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Church Street

Leamington

Proposed Loading Only

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4P

PTRO21-022-004

Warwick District CPE No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Page 16

Page 4 of 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
HIGH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
CHURCH STREET

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


1a

P

A

C

K

I
N

G

T

O

N

 
P

L

A

C

E

Hall

S

T

R

E

E

T

C
H

A
P

E
L

1

 
t
o

 
5

6

 
t
o

 
1

1

1

4

 
t
o

 
2

0

1

2

2

1

 
t
o

 
2

4

1

Chapel Cross

1 to 11

5

9

It is proposed to extend the L6
residents parking zone as shown
to increase the capacity in the
overall zone

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Chapel Street

Leamington Spa

L6 Residents Parking Restrictions

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4_L

PTRO21-022-005

Warwick District CPE Variation No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

P
age 17

P
age 5 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


8

0

.

2

m

4
6

4

2

4

4

a

8

2

.

6

m

4
8

4

4

N

E

W

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

M

A

N

O

R

 

R

O

A

D

C

O

V

E

N

T

R

Y

 

R

O

A

D

65m

14m18m

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed

in locations shown
REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

New Street

Kenilworth

Proposed Double Yellow Lines

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4_L

PTRO21-022-006

Warwick District CPE Variation No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

P
age 18

P
age 6 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


7

6

R

O

A

D

E

L

M

B

A

N

K

2

1

0

2

6

9

4

1

3
1

5

2

8

10m

15m

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed
in locations shown

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

NOTES

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Elmbank Road

Kenilworth

Proposed Double Yellow Lines

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4P

PTRO21-022-007

Warwick District CPE No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Page 19

Page 7 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


1

5

4

4

6

1

4

4

C

R

7

9

3

1

8

2

2

LB

2

0

(

P

H

)

8

3

1

0

8

7

8

9

9

5

1

1

8

5

1

7

8

T

C

B

s

1

6

6

1

8

4

9

1

8

0

8

1

2

H

e

r

a

l

d

s

 

C

o

u

r

t

S

i

m

o

n

t

o

9

1

T

h

e

 

S

i

m

p

l

e

6

t

o

6

2

It is proposed to remove the
existing limited waiting restrictions
in the position shown

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Emscote Road

Warwick

Proposed Removal of Limited Waiting

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4_L

PTRO21-022-008

Warwick District CPE Variation No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

P
age 20

P
age 8 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


5

7

5

9

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed
in locations shown

Fishponds

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Fishponds

Kenilworth

Proposed Double Yellow Lines

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4_L

PTRO21-022-009

Warwick District CPE Variation No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

P
age 21

P
age 9 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


50.9m

1

8

1

9

FB

H

A

M

P

T

O

N

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

1

It is proposed to introduce a
formal disabled bay in the
location shown.

1

a

7

1

1

b

It is proposed to introduce a
formal disabled bay in the
location shown.

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Hampton Street

Warwick

Proposed Disabled Bay

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4_L

PTRO21-022-010

Warwick District CPE Variation No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

P
age 22

P
age 10 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


1

3

1
9

3

1

9

15

T

h

e

 

V

i
r

g

i
n

s

3

3

a

n

d

 

C

a

s

t

l
e

1

6

18

6

T

C

B

2

1

2

6

20

1

6

b

8

2224

M

O

N

M

O

U

T

H

 

C

L

O

S

E

1

4

1

0

4

1

1

a

LB

2

1

b

16a

1

2

PO

2

a

H

I
G

H

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

Permit exemptions for the
bays indicated are to be
changed to remove reference
to an obsolete parking zone.

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

High Street

Kenilworth

Limited Waiting Restrictions

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4_L

PTRO21-022-011

Warwick District CPE Variation No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

P
age 23

P
age 11 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


3

7

It is proposed to remove the
disabled bay as shown and
replace it with the nearby
limited waiting restrictions

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Lakin Road

Warwick

Proposed Disabled Bay Revocation

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4_L

PTRO21-022-012

Warwick District CPE Variation No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

P
age 24

P
age 12 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


8
7

M
A

P
L
E

 G
R

O
V

E

1
2

7

3

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed
in locations shown

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Maple Grove

Warwick

Proposed Double Yellow Lines

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4_L

PTRO21-022-013

Warwick District CPE Variation No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

P
age 25

P
age 13 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


4

0

2

8

3

3

4

3

It is proposed to introduce a
formal disabled bay in the
location shown.

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Paradise Street

Warwick

Proposed Disabled Bay

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4_L

PTRO21-022-014

Warwick District CPE Variation No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

P
age 26

P
age 14 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


1
5

3

4

1

1
3

9

7

5

6

10

19

1
7

1
5
a

1
1

S
O

U
T

H
B

A
N

K
 R

O
A

D

1
6

2

9
a

22

17a

3

2

6

1

Proposed Resident's Parking
Scheme to replace existing
unrestricted parking bays

Proposed Resident's Parking
Scheme to replace existing
unrestricted parking bays

Proposed Resident's Parking

Continues below

3

4

1

a

4

1

C
O

U
R

T

4

H
I
B

B
E

R
D

2

9

4

0

3

8

19

17

S
O

U
T

H
B

A
N

K
 R

O
A

D

3
8

3
0

1
5

3

6

1
4

22

1
7
a

Proposed Resident's Parking
Scheme to replace existing
unrestricted parking bays

Proposed Resident's Parking
Scheme to replace existing
unrestricted parking bays

Continues above

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Southbank Road

Kenilworth

Proposed Residents Parking Scheme

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4_L

PTRO21-022-015

Warwick District CPE Variation No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

P
age 27

P
age 15 of 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
SOUTHBANK ROAD

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


1

1

1

3

2

1

4

50.9m

TCB

4

4

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed
in locations shown

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Wathen Road

Warwick

Proposed Double Yellow Lines

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4_L

PTRO21-022-016

Warwick District CPE Variation No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

P
age 28

P
age 16 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


C

O

R

U

N

N

A

 

R

O

A

D

R
O

A
D

60.4m

Spring

Car Park

Cottages

B

U

D

B

R

O

O

K

E

4

W

I
L

M

H

U

R

S

T

 
R

O

A

D

2

1

1

1

5

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed
in locations shown

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

NOTES

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Wilmhurst Road

Warwick

Proposed Double Yellow Lines

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4P

PTRO21-022-017

Warwick District CPE No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Page 29

Page 17 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


1

1

R

I

C

H

A

R

D

S

O

N

 

C

L

O

S

E

4

2

1

6

5

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

2

1

9

1

4

P

R

I
M

R

O

S

E

 
H

I
L

L

1

6

1

1

1

4

1

2

8
T

C

B

9

10m

10m
10m

10m

10m

10m
10m

10m

10m

10m

Double yellow lines are

proposed to be installed

in locations shown

Double yellow lines are

proposed to be installed

in locations shown

Double yellow lines are

proposed to be installed

1

2
8

1
8

1

1
0

4

9

1

S

u

r
g

e

r
y

2

WOODLOES

4
4

2

1
4

E

l
 
S

u

b

 
S

t
a

8

1
6

11

AVEN
U

E S
O

U
TH

1
2

1
2

1

9

M
A

L
H

A
M

 
R

O
A

D

2
6

6

2

2
0

2

10m

10m
10m

10m

10m 10m
10m 10m

10m

10m

10m10m

10m

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed

in locations shown

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed

in locations shown

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

NOTES

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Woodloes Avenue South

Warwick

Proposed Double Yellow Lines

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4_L

PTRO21-022-018a

Warwick District CPE Variation No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

P
age 30

P
age 18 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


4

1

7

8

9

8

0

1

1

0

3

4

1

6

7

0

1

8

7

3

1

7

S

M

Y

T

H

E

2

2

6

0

LB

6

2

4

7

9

5

1

2

2

W

O

O

D

L

O

E

S

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

 
S

O

U

T

H

2

5

1

5

K

E

T

T

L

E

W

E

L

L

 
C

L

O

S

E

2

0

2

1

4

G

R

O

V

E

A

D

D

I
N

G

H

A

M

 
C

L

O

S

E

2

8

2

7

1

1

1

0

6

7

1

4

7

1

2

3

4

El Sub Sta

A

U

S

T

W

I
C

K

 
C

L

O

S

E

1

5

0

6

1

2

TCB

2
4

Woodloes House

7

R

E

A

R

D

O

N

 
C

O

U

R

T

5

11m

10m

6m17m

10m

10m

10m

13m

10m

10m

10m

7m

10m

10
m

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed
in locations shown

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed
in locations shown

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed
in locations shown

Double yellow lines are
proposed to be installed
in locations shown

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

NOTES

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Woodloes Avenue South

Warwick

Proposed Double Yellow Lines

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4P

PTRO21-022-018b

Warwick District CPE No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Page 31

Page 19 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


Collegiate Church of St Mary

1

72.2m

2

O

L

D

 
S

Q

U

A

R

E

1

6

The Old Post Office

4

 
t
o

 
1

4

1

6

2

0

2

8

2

2

1

4

1

2

1

0

N

O

R

T

H

G

A

T

E

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

1

4

1

8

2

Pay and Display bays are
proposed to include W2
permit exemptions

Drawing title Drawn by

Date

Scale

Checked by

Drawing numberProject title

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

NOTES

REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT REV DATE BY CHK AMENDMENT

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

- --/--/-- - - -

Northgate Street

Warwick

Proposed Residents Pay and Display

BD GS

22 March 2022

NTS @ A4P

PTRO21-022-019

Warwick District CPE No.12

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of HMSO

© Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100019520.

All rights reserved.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Warwickshire County Council.

H:\CH-Minor Works\TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS\CPE PARKING\Warwick\Consolidation 2017\V12-2022 Annual Programme\Formal Consultation\PTRO21 022.dwg

www.warwickshire.gov.uk

mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Warwickshire

County Council

Traffic & Road Safety

Communities, Shire Hall Post Room

Warwick, CV34 4SP

Tel : 01926 410410

TRANSPORT
AND ECONOMY

Page 32

Page 20 of 20

http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/
mailto:communities@warwickshire.gov.uk?subject=Traffic Projects


 

OFFICIAL  

Warwickshire County Council 
 

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 
 

The Warwickshire County Council (District of Warwick) (Civil Enforcement Area) (Waiting 
Restrictions, On-Street Parking Places and Residents’ Parking) (Consolidation) (Variation 

No. 12) Order 2022 
 

1. Background 

Throughout the last year Warwickshire County Council have received numerous requests for changes to 
the parking restrictions throughout Warwick District. 

 

Consultation Plan Location Street 
 

Plan Reference 
Revision 

No. 

PTRO21-022-001 Leamington Spa Breaksmead GE60 3 

PTRO21-022-002 Leamington Spa Clapham Terrace GA62 1 

PTRO21-022-003 Kenilworth Clarendon Road FB55 1 

PTRO21-022-004 Leamington Spa Church Street 
FZ61 
GA61 

2 
3 

PTRO21-022-005 Leamington Spa Chapel Street FZ61 2 

PTRO21-022-006 Kenilworth Coventry Road EW54 1 

PTRO21-022-007 Kenilworth Elmbank Road EW53 1 

PTRO21-022-008 Warwick Emscote Road FY56 1 

PTRO21-022-009 Kenilworth Fishponds FA53 2 

PTRO21-022-010 Warwick Hampton Street GC52 3 

PTRO21-022-011 Kenilworth High Street 
EW54 
EX54 

1 
1 

PTRO21-022-012 Warwick Lakin Road FY54 3 

PTRO21-022-013 Warwick Maple Grove FW55 1 

PTRO21-022-014 Warwick Paradise Street FY54 3 

PTRO21-022-015 Kenilworth Southbank Road 
EY54 
EZ54 

1 
1 

PTRO21-022-016 Warwick Wathen Road FY53 3 

PTRO21-022-017 Warwick Wilmhurst Road FY51 2 

PTRO21-022-018 Warwick Woodloes Avenue South 

FV53 
FV54 
FW53 
FW54 

1 
1 
1 
1 

Admin Changes 
No changes on-

street 

Warwick Birmingham Road 
FX50 
FY50 
FY51 

3 
2 
2 

Warwick Cherry Street FZ54 3 

Kenilworth Common Lane EU56 2 

Warwick Priory Street GA53 2 

 
 
 

Page 33

Page 1 of 5Page 1 of 5



 

OFFICIAL  

2. Statement of Reasons  

Breaksmead, Bonniksen Close & Lockheed Close – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to extend the double yellow lines along Breaksmead and into Bonniksen Close and Lockheed 
Close in Leamington. This will help prevent vehicles from parking in an obstructive manner, thereby aiding 
in avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or for preventing the likelihood of any such 
danger arising. 

Clapham Terrace & Rushmore Street, Leamington Spa – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to install double yellow lines at the junction of Clapham Terrace and Rushmore Street in 
Leamington. This will help prevent vehicles from parking in an obstructive manner, thereby aiding in 
avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or for preventing the likelihood of any such 
danger arising. 

Clarendon Road & Glebe Crescent, Kenilworth – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to install double yellow lines at the junction of Clarendon Road and Glebe Crescent. This will 
aid in preventing vehicles from parking in an obstructive manner at the junction thereby aiding in avoiding 
danger to persons or other traffic using the road or for preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising. 

Church Street, Leamington Spa – Loading Only 
It is proposed to remove a section of limited waiting restrictions along Church Street and replace with a 
Loading Only restriction to assist the business with loading and unloading, thereby preserving or improving 
the amenities of the area through which the road runs. 

Chapel Street, Leamington – Limited Waiting with L6 permit exemptions 
It is proposed to install a residents parking scheme along Chapel Street in Leamington Spa, to provide 
additional capacity within the existing L6 residents parking zone. This will provide facilities for the residents 
within the L6 zone to park for long periods of time in the local area, thereby preserving or improving the 
amenities of the area through which the road runs. 

Coventry Road & New Street, Kenilworth – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to install double yellow lines at the junction of Coventry Road, Manor Road and New Street 
in Kenilworth. This will help prevent vehicles from parking in an obstructive manner, thereby aiding in 
avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or for preventing the likelihood of any such 
danger arising. 

Elmbank Road & Berkley Road, Kenilworth – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to install double yellow lines along Elmbank Road and at its junction with Berkley Road to 
prevent vehicles from parking in an obstructive manner along the narrow road, thereby aiding in avoiding 
danger to persons or other traffic using the road or for preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising  

Emscote Road, Warwick – Revocation of Limited Waiting restrictions 
It is proposed to remove the limited waiting restrictions that are in place along Emscote Road outside 
residential properties Nos. 140-178. This will provide facilities for the residents to park for long periods of 
time in the local area, thereby preserving or improving the amenities of the area through which the road 
runs. 

Fishponds Road, Kenilworth – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to install double yellow lines along Fishponds Road at the entrance to the leisure centre. This 
will help prevent vehicles from parking in an obstructive manner, thereby aiding in avoiding danger to 
persons or other traffic using the road or for preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising. 

Hampton Street, Warwick – Disabled Badge Holders Only 
Following installation of informal disabled bays outside Nos. 4 and 19 Hampton Street, Warwick it is 
proposed to formalise these disabled bays. This will provide a priority parking space for the residents that 
would benefit the most, thereby aiding in preserving or improving the amenities of the area through which 
the road runs. 

Page 34

Page 2 of 5



 

OFFICIAL  

High Street, Kenilworth – Limited Waiting, 2 hours No Return within 4 hours, 8am-8pm 
except permit holders K3 
To correct a long-standing administrative error in the permit exemptions for High Street, Kenilworth it is 
necessary to vary the TRO to match the restriction to the surrounding restrictions. This will provide more 
facilities for residents within the K3 zone to park, thereby preserving or improving the amenities of the area 
through which the road runs 

Lakin Road, Warwick – Limited Waiting 8am – 8pm 2 hours No return within 4 hours except 
permit holders (W3) 
It is proposed to remove the existing disabled badge holders only bay that is currently in place outside No. 
39 Lakin Road and return it to the residents parking scheme. This will provide facilities for the residents to 
park for long periods of time in the local area, thereby preserving or improving the amenities of the area 
through which the road runs. 

Maple Grove, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to install double yellow lines along Maple Grove to prevent vehicles from parking in an 
obstructive manner thereby aiding in avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or for 
preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising. 

Paradise Street, Warwick – Disabled Badge Holders Only 
Following installation of informal disabled bays outside No. 41 Paradise Street, Warwick it is proposed to 
formalise these disabled bays. This will provide a priority parking space for the residents that would benefit 
the most, thereby aiding in preserving or improving the amenities of the area through which the road runs. 

Southbank Road, Kenilworth – Limited Waiting  
It is proposed to extend the K2 residents permit zone onto Southbank Road, Kenilworth. This will provide 
facilities for the residents within the K2 zone to park for long periods of time in the local area, thereby 
preserving or improving the amenities of the area through which the road runs. 

Wathen Road, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to extend the double yellow lines along Wathen Road, Warwick. This will help prevent 
vehicles from parking in an obstructive manner, thereby aiding in avoiding danger to persons or other 
traffic using the road or for preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising. 

Wilmhurst Road, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce double yellow lines in strategic locations along Wilmhurst Road, in particular on 
the junctions at the entrance to the residential estate. This will help prevent vehicles from parking in an 
obstructive manner, thereby aiding in avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or for 
preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising. 

Woodloes Avenue South, Makepeace Avenue, Hayle Avenue, Brese Avenue, Grassington 
Avenue, Malham Road, Hebden Avenue, Kilsney Grove, Smythe Grove, Austwick Close, 
Reardon Court & Kettlewell Close, Warwick – No Wating at any Time 
It is proposed to introduce double yellow lines along Woodloes Avenue South at the junctions along its 
length. This will help prevent vehicles from parking in an obstructive manner, thereby aiding in avoiding 
danger to persons or other traffic using the road or for preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising 

Admin Changes - Stanks Island, Cherry Street, Priory Street, Common Lane 
Following the remapping of the road network where there have been significant changes to the road 
layout, the ParkMap tiles for the sections of the highway that have parking restrictions on them are to be 
reissued to reflect the new road layout. This will not affect the restrictions as they currently appear on 
street. 

  

Page 35

Page 3 of 5



 

OFFICIAL  

3. Schedule of Restrictions 

Austwick Close, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Woodloes Avenue South, westwards for 10 metres 

Bonniksen Close, Leamington – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Breaksmead, westwards for 15 metrers 

Breaksmead, Leamington – No Waiting at any Time  

West side, from its junction with Culworth Close, southwards for 75 metres 

East side, from its junction with Culworth Close, southwards for 10 metres 

East side, from a point 44 metres south of its junction with Culworth Close, south westwards for 51 metres 

Brese Avenue, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Woodloes Avenue South, southwards for 10 metres 

Budbrooke Road, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from a point 10 metres south of its junction with Birmingham Road, south-westwards for 75 

metres 

Clapham Terrace, Leamington – No Waiting at any Time 

East side, from a point 10 metres north of its junction southwards for 16 metres 

Clarendon Road, Kenilworth – No Waiting at any Time 

North side, from a point 9 metres east of its junction with Glebe Crescent, westwards for 30 metres 

Church Street, Leamington – Loading Only 

West side, from a point 12 metres north of its junction with High Street, northwards for 12 metres 

Coventry Road, Kenilworth – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Manor Road, northwards for 14 metres 

Elmbank Road, Kenilworth – No Waiting at any Time 

East side, from its junction with Berkley Road, southwards for 66 metres. 

East side, from a point 83 metres south of its junction with Berkley Road, southwards for 16 metres 

East side, from a point 116 metres south of its junction with Berkley Road, southwards for 3 metres 

West side, from its junction with Berkley Road, southwards for 34 metres 

West side, from a point 50 metres south of its junction with Berkley Road, southwards for 74 metres 

Emscote Road, Warwick – Revocation of Limited Waiting 

South side, from a point 12 metres east of its junction with Humphris Street, eastwards for 78 metres 

Fishponds Road, (service road) Kenilworth – No Waiting at any Time 

South side, from a point 12 metres west of its junction with Fishponds Road, westwards for 

Glebe Road, Kenilworth – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Clarendon Road, northwards for 15 metres 

Grassington Avenue, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Woodloes Avenue South, northwards for 10 metres 

Hayle Avenue, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Woodloes Avenue South, southwards for 10 metres 

Hebden Avenue, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Woodloes Avenue South, northwards for 10 metres 

High Street, Kenilworth - Limited Waiting, 2 hours No Return within 4 hours, 8am-8pm except permit 

holders K3 

North side, from a point 20 metres west of its junction with Bridge Street, westwards for 58 metres 

South side, from a point 20 metres west of its junction with Bridge Street, westwards for 50 metres 

Kettlewell Close, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Woodloes Avenue South, westwards for 10 metres 

Kilsney Grove, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Woodloes Avenue South, southwards for 10 metres 

Lakin Road, Warwick – Limited Waiting 2 hours No Return within 4 hours 8am-8pm Except permit 

holders W3 

West side, from a point 5 metres north of its junction with Packmore Street, northwards for 6.6 metres 

Page 36

Page 4 of 5



 

OFFICIAL  

Lockheed Close, Leamington – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Brakesmead, southwards for 10 metres 

Makepeace Avenue, Warwick – No Wating at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Woodloes Avenue South, northwards for 10 metres 

Malham Road, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Woodloes Avenue South, southwards for 10 metres 

Maple Grove, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

South side, from a point 68 metres west of its junction with the Chantry, westwards for 54 metres 

North side, from a point 117 metres west of it junction with the Chantry, westwards for 4 metres 

Southbank Road, Kenilworth – Limited Wating 2 hours No Return 4 hours 8am – 8pm Except permit 

holders K2 

West side, from a point 32 metres south of its junction with Abbey hill, southwards for 144 metres 

West side, from a point 20 metres north of its junction with Station Road, northwards for 113 metres 

New Street, Kenilworth – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Manor Road, south-westwards for 45 metres 

Rushmore Street, Leamington – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Clapham Terrace eastwards for 10 metres 

Smythe Grove, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

Both sides, from its junction with Woodloes Avenue South, westwards for 10 metres 

Wathen Road, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

West side, from a point 25 metres north of its junction with Vine Lane, northwards for 5 metres 

Wilmhurst Road, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

East side, from its junction with Budbrooke Road, southwards for 10 metres 

East side, from a point 26 metres south of its junction with Budbrooke Road, south-westwards for 10 

metres 

South side, from its junction with Corunna Road, westwards for 6 metres 

Woodloes Avenue South, Warwick – No Waiting at any Time 

North side, from its junction with Primrose Hill, westwards for 10 metres 

North side, from a point 81 metres west of its junction with Primrose Hill, westwards for 30 metres 

North side, from a point 130 metres west of its junction with Makepeace Avenue, westwards for 38 metres 

North side, from a point 125 metres west of its junction with Grassington Avenue, westwards for 25 metres 

East side, from a point 62 metres north of its junction with Smythe Grove, northwards for 25 metres 

East side, from a point 36 metres north of its junction with Austwick Close, northwards for 27 metres 

South side, from its junction with Corunna Road, westwards for 6 metres 

South side, from a point 122 metres west of its junction with Corunna Road, westwards for 25 metres 

South side, from a point 58 metres west of its junction with Hayle Avenue, westwards for 27 metres 

South side, from a point 108 metres west of its junction with Brese Avenue, westwards for 27 metres 

South-west side, from a point 150 metres west of its junction with Malham Road, northwards for 25 metres 

West side, from a point 50 metres north of its junction with Kilnsey Grove, northwards for 27 metres 

West side, from a point 100 metres north of its junction with Smythe Grove, northwards for 30 metres 

4. Existing orders to be varied  

The Warwickshire County Council (District Of Warwick) (Civil Enforcement Area) (Waiting Restrictions, On-
Street Parking Places and Residents’ Parking) (Consolidation) Order 2017  

5. Priority  

High 

 

Page 37

Page 5 of 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39

Page 1 of 28Page 1 of 28



Page 40

Page 2 of 28



Page 41

Page 3 of 28



Page 42

Page 4 of 28



Page 43

Page 5 of 28



Page 44

Page 6 of 28



Page 45

Page 7 of 28



Page 46

Page 8 of 28



Page 47

Page 9 of 28



Page 48

Page 10 of 28



Page 49

Page 11 of 28



Page 50

Page 12 of 28



Page 51

Page 13 of 28



Page 52

Page 14 of 28



Page 53

Page 15 of 28



Page 54

Page 16 of 28



Page 55

Page 17 of 28



Page 56

Page 18 of 28



Page 57

Page 19 of 28



Page 58

Page 20 of 28



Page 59

Page 21 of 28



Page 60

Page 22 of 28



Page 61

Page 23 of 28



Page 62

Page 24 of 28



Page 63

Page 25 of 28



Page 64

Page 26 of 28



Page 65

Page 27 of 28



Page 66

Page 28 of 28



 1 

 
 

Warwickshire County Council 
Department of Environment and Economy 

 
 

 Parking Policies 
 
 

Introduction 
 
The following policies were agreed by the County Council’s Cabinet at its meeting in July 
2007.  They set out the general approach of the County Council.  However, each case will be 
considered according to its particular circumstances to see if an exception is required. 
 
 
1. Waiting Restrictions  
2. Residents Parking Schemes 
3. Parking Bays for Disabled People 
4. Footway Parking 
 
 
 
1.  Waiting Restrictions 
 
1.1 The control of on-street parking by the use of waiting restrictions is one method of 

seeking to achieve the following objectives:- 
 
 (i) Making the most effective use of the existing road network 
  having regard to the competing demands placed upon it 
 (ii) The reduction of road accident casualties 

(iii) Minimising delays and congestion on the main road network. 
 (iv) Reducing the intrusive effects of traffic on the environment 
 
1.2. Proposals for new waiting restrictions should be considered against the following 

policy guidelines:- 
 
 (i) where injury collisions at actual problem sites can be reduced; 
 (ii) where congestion on important traffic routes can be reduced; 

(iii) where parking control is essential in association with traffic management 
measures in accordance with the County Council’s Local Transport Plan 
objectives. 

(iv) where serious disruption of commerce or industry is caused by parked 
vehicles; 

(v) where time limited restrictions are necessary to support the economic viability 
of an area; 

(vi) where the route to obvious high fire risk premises (e.g. a hospital or school) 
would be obstructed; 

(vii) where they are an integral part of an approved Residents Parking Scheme: 
(viii) where major problems in residential areas during the working day are created 

by commuter/shopper parking but a residents parking scheme does not 
apply. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 67

Page 1 of 3Page 1 of 3



 2 

2.  Residents Parking Schemes 
 
2.1. Residents Parking Schemes are intended to deal with the problems caused by 

commuter or shopper parking in residential streets adjacent to town centres and other 
locations, such as railway stations.  

 
2.2 Proposals for new residents parking schemes should be considered against the 

following policy guidelines:- 
 

(i) The streets should be located in or adjacent to a town centre or other major 
commuter/shopper attraction. 

 (ii) The streets included shall be predominantly residential in nature. 
(iii) The streets shall form a group in an identifiable area rather than individual 

streets in isolation. 
(iv) It should generally be demonstrated that the majority of the available 

kerbside parking space is regularly occupied by non-residential parkers and 
also that a significant number of the properties do not have parking space 
within the curtilage. 

(v) The schemes shall be a “shared scheme” with the streets controlled by an 
on-street parking order with limited waiting for the general public (the duration 
of which will be determined by the particular site circumstances relating to the 
street or area concerned) and unrestricted waiting for vehicles displaying a 
permit. 

(vi) The hours of operation of the Residents Parking Scheme will be determined 
by considering the hours of operation of other limited waiting in the area, if 
any. 

 
2.3. The issue of residents permits will be subject to the following principles:- 
 

(i) Permits shall be restricted to the keepers of vehicles categorised as cars, 
light vans or motor cycles. 

(ii) Permits will be available to domestic residents of the street or area.  
(iii) In the case of properties which are established as “Bedsits” or are registered 

as Houses of Multiple Occupation the general rule will be that permits will be 
limited to one per letting room. Otherwise the number of permits issued per 
household shall be determined separately for each scheme by considering 
the conditions applying in the streets concerned and subject to any particular 
planning conditions relating to parking permit eligibility which may in place.  

(iv) A  “Visitors Permit” may be issued to each household and to the owner of any 
holiday home registered with the Heart of England Tourist Board. 

(v) The issue of permits will be restricted to residents of the streets in which the 
parking places are located unless it can be shown that the scheme would not 
be overloaded by the issue of permits in adjacent streets, when justified. 

(vi) A charge will be levied for each permit. The amount will be based on the 
costs or anticipated costs of administering the scheme and may be varied as 
required.  

 
2.4. Permits will also be available as follows:- 
 

(i) Registered Guest Houses 
(ii) Carers 
(iii) For the customers of established garage businesses 

 
2.5. Other “Exemption” permits will be allowed subject to it being demonstrated that this 

would not compromise the main objectives of the scheme. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 68

Page 2 of 3



 3 

3.  Parking Bays for Disabled People  
 
3.1. Formal parking bays for disabled people, with time limited waiting if required,  will be 

provided where there is a demand for reserved parking for blue badge holders in 
general such as post offices, libraries and other public buildings and in town centres.   

 
3.2. Formal parking bays for blue badge holders in residential areas will be provided, at no 

cost to the applicant, subject to a demonstrated need and the normal process for a 
Traffic Regulation Order (TRO).   

 
3.3. Informal parking bays will be provided, at no cost to the applicant, for the use of a 

disabled person outside his/her residence where there is no TRO in force.  
 
 
4.  Footway Parking 
 
4.1 The County Council will, whenever possible and within existing budgets, take action 

to prevent or discourage the parking of motor vehicles on footways. 
 
4.2. No requests to formalise parking either wholly or partly on a footway will be 

considered:- 
 

(i) On roads in shopping and other busy pedestrian areas 
(ii) Outside schools, play areas, libraries, hospitals, health centres and 

residential homes for the elderly or other places of public assembly. 
(iii) Any road where vehicles would have to park on a grass verge 
(iv) On any footway which is paved or where the height of kerbs is greater than 

75-80mm. 
(v) Where there is sufficient carriageway parking in a residential area to meet the 

normal demand or where residents can provide off-street parking but have 
chosen not to do so, or do not use existing off-street parking places for a 
variety of reasons not considered acceptable on highway, traffic or amenity 
grounds. 

 
4.3. Requests to formalise parking either partly or wholly on a footway in a  

residential area will only be considered against the following policy guidelines:- 
 

(i) The footway parking is necessary to provide sufficient parking spaces to 
make a residents parking scheme viable and footway parking is already 
taking place. 

(ii) The parking of vehicles wholly within the carriageway would compromise the  
carriageway width available for emergency services or refuse vehicles or 
other regular users of the road. 

(iii) A minimum footway width of 1.5 metres must generally be available for 
pedestrians. However, this could be reduced to 1.2 metres at some pinch 
points.  

 
 
 
Parkingpolicies.doc 
 

Page 69

Page 3 of 3



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Warwick District CPE Variation No. 12
	Appendix A for Warwick District CPE Variation No. 12
	Appendix B for Warwick District CPE Variation No. 12
	Sheets and Views
	001

	Sheets and Views
	002

	Sheets and Views
	003

	Sheets and Views
	004

	Sheets and Views
	005

	Sheets and Views
	006

	Sheets and Views
	007

	Sheets and Views
	008

	Sheets and Views
	009

	Sheets and Views
	010

	Sheets and Views
	011

	Sheets and Views
	012

	Sheets and Views
	013

	Sheets and Views
	014

	Sheets and Views
	015

	Sheets and Views
	016

	Sheets and Views
	017

	Sheets and Views
	018-a

	Sheets and Views
	018-b

	Sheets and Views
	019


	Appendix C for Warwick District CPE Variation No. 12
	Appendix D for Warwick District CPE Variation No. 12
	Appendix E for Warwick District CPE Variation No. 12


